# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JOSEPH DAVIS, JR.,

APPELLANT

VERSUS

BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARD, ET AL

**APPELLEES** 

NO. 2007-TS-02155

# APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HARRISON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

**APPELLANTS' BRIEF** 

# **ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED**

JOSEPH DAVIS, JR., PRO SE PRO SE (COUNSEL OF RECORD) 346 FRANKS DRIVE BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI 39531 TEL: (228) 388-6985

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JOSEPH DAVIS, JR.APPELLANTVERSUSDOCKET NO. 2007-TS-02155BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARD, ET AL

# APPELLEES

# **CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS**

#### STATEMENT OF ISSUES

I.

I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, am a tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District with property interest as required by statue and State law under the State of Mississippi, Mississippi Education Employment Procedures Law (MEEPL) and as an employee have a legitimate claim of entitlement to my employment of over 9 (nine) years of Creditable Service, in the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS).

(Tab 4, Record Excerpts of the Appellant with Exhibit "1" attached)

(Appeal Record page 90, Exhibit "1")

### II.

I, Appellant Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District was entitled to a hearing based upon my valid claim of entitlement to continued employment as a teacher's assistant and the unlawful termination deprived me the tenured employee of my property interest that would invoke the due process provisions of the United States Constitution.

#### Ш.

I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District am being deprived of my rights as an employee as a teachers assistant in the Biloxi Public School District with property interest as required by State Statue and the Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law, §37-9-101, Long Title. vested with tenure protections cognizable by Genuine Issues of Material Facts and the Law. §1983. Civil Action for Deprivation of Rights:

Every person who, under color of any statue, ordinance, regulation, custom, or usage, of any state or Territory of the District of Columbia, subjects, or causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within the jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, suit in equity, other proper proceeding for redress, except that in any action brought against a judicial officer for an act of omission taken in such officer's judicial capacity, injunctive relief shall not be granted unless a declaratory decree was violated or declaratory relief was unavailable. For the purposes of this section, any Act of Congress applicable exclusively to the District of Columbia shall be considered to be a statue of the District of Columbia.

# IV.

I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District am being denied the protections of the Thirteenth Amendment (1865) that prohibits slavery or involuntary servitude and authorizes Congress to enforce that prohibition. The State of Mississippi is the only state of the 50 (fifty) states that has not Rarified the Thirteenth Amendment (1865). This is a Genuine Issue of a Material Fact and the law.

#### V.

The Fourteenth Amendment guarantees due process and equal protection of the laws to all persons. I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, United States Citizen by birth, tenured employee, with property interest in the Biloxi Public School District am being denied protection of the Fourteenth Amendment rights under the Fourteenth Amendment under Section 1.

Section 1. All persons born or naturalized in the United States and of the state wherein they reside. No state shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any state deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws. This is a Genuine Issue of a Material Fact and the law.

### VI.

The Federal Constitution guarantees a broader right than the state statue, the statue must yield. Billiot v. State, 515 So. 2d 1234, 1236 (Miss. 1987)

### VII.

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District without an employment contract who have been terminated for reasons declared legally impermissible. Heartsouth, PLLC v. Boyd, 865 So.2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss.2003) Levens v. Campbell, 733 So.2d 753, 760 (¶24) (Miss. 1999) Shaw v. Burchfield, 481 So.2d 247,253-54 (Miss. 1985)

#### VIII.

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant pro se, am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District whose cause of action for termination is legally impermissible based upon the cause of action for termination is one of the two exceptions to the general, employment-at-will rule. I, Joseph Davis, Jr., am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District with property interest who was discharged for reporting illegal acts of his employer to the state auditor's general office and the state attorney generals office and I am therefore, not barred by the employment at will doctrine from bringing action in tort for damages against my employer. Buchanan v. Ameristar Casino Vicksburg, 852 So. 2d 25,26-27 (¶5)Miss.2003) McArn v. Allied Bruce-Terminix Co., Inc., 626 So.2d 603,607 (Miss.1993) See, Heartsouth, PLLC v. Boyd, 865 So.2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss.2003)

## IX.

#### **ERROR AND ISSUE**

The Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, was arbitrary and capriciously denied the right to a Trial by Jury, by the Honorable Circuit Court Judge Roger T. Clark, In the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District, on Order that was Ordered and Adjudged, on 28 February 2008, (Refer to Appellants Record Excerpts, Tab 14) and The Appeal Record page 340A. The Order is not Filed/Stamped by the Circuit Court Clerk, and properly entered into the Circuit Court Records pursuant to the Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure.

The Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, respectfully refer the court to the Appellants Record Excerpts, Tab 4, Affidavit of Joseph Davis, Jr., Plaintiff Pro Se In Response to Biloxi Public School District Motion to Dismiss or in the Alternative, for Summary Judgment Cause Number A2402-07-00036, Filed/Stamped November 15, 2007, In the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District, Filed/Stamped by November 15, 2007, by Gayle Parker, Circuit Clerk.

#### **ERROR AND ISSUE**

The Honorable Judge Robert H. Walker, (then) Circuit Court Judge, Second Judicial District, Harrison County Mississippi erred in not ruling on or responding to the Rule 60(a) and Rule 60(b) Motions that were properly submitted and filed by Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, Pro Se. Also, Relevant Evidence has been omitted by the Court, under M. R. A. P. 10(b)(1), Designation of the Record in the original Cause Number A2402-04-00011.

The lack of ruling on the two Mississippi Rules of Court, Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure Rule(s) 60 (a) and 60 (b) have caused the Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., to be unjustly toll the time for filing the original appeal whereas the Rule 60 Motion, which historically **has not been tolled the time.** See Michael v. Michael, 650 So. 2d 469 (Miss. 1995) and the Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., Pro Se, is seeking relief from judgments tainted by fraud, misrepresentation and statutory misconduct and violations by the Defendants. Please refer to Appellants Record Excerpts, Tab 8 (Plaintiff's Motion Rule 60a, Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure) Also, refer to Appeal Record pages 305 through 308.

X.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On about August 12, 2003, I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District reported the Biloxi Public School District, Comptroller, Mr. Jude McDonnell to the State Auditor General's Office (Phil Bryant was the Auditor General) for malfeasance in office and also, the unlawful garnishment of my wages by Mr. Jude McDonnell, Comptroller, Biloxi Public School District. Also, I, Appellant Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District reported to the State of Mississippi, Superintendent of Education, Dr. Johnson, the malfeasance that was occurring in the Biloxi Public School District and the intimidation my family and I was suffering due to the reporting of the Comptroller and administration's wrongdoings.(**Appeal Record Page 279**) Biloxi Public School District Check No. 14154, dated 2/1/2001, \$5,284.65.

The above cited Biloxi Public School District was subsequently reissued on 2/4/04, Check No.004210, in the same amount of \$5,284.65 replacing check #14154 dated 2/1/2001. I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, am still in possession of the check dated 2/4/04, No.004210 pending the complete payment of the full garnished monies that was unlawfully taken from the Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., Pro Se, tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District, by the Comptroller of the Biloxi Public School District, Jude McDonnell and the Biloxi Public School District Administrators. The garnishment of my (Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, Pro Se) employee wages by the Comptroller, Biloxi Public School District, Mr. Jude McDonnell was unlawful, uncaring and grossly negligent. The lawyer that initiated the garnishment is R.. Scott Wells, who reside across the street from me (the Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se).

Lawyer R. Scott Wells unlawfully deposited the garnished monies into his personal account during the time of the garnishment. (All of the garnished monies have not been remitted back to my family and I) If it pleases the court and in an effort to secure justice for me (Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, Pro Se) please direct your attention to the case Nationwide Recovery v. Joseph Davis, Jr., (Appellant) that was Reversed and Remanded from the Supreme Court of Mississippi, Cause Number 20000-CP-00036-SCT, on 03/29/2001, to the Harrison County Circuit Court, Second Judicial District, In the State of Mississippi. The Supreme Court of Mississippi, mandated and entered a final judgment on the 19<sup>th</sup> day of April 2001, A.D. to the Harrison County Circuit, 2<sup>nd</sup> Judicial District, and Filed/Stamped on April 23, 2001, Gayle Parker, by Lisa Brown Deputy Clerk.

The above cited case Joseph Davis, Jr. V. Nationwide Recovery Service, Inc., 797 So. 2d 929 (Miss. 2001), reversed the dismissal and remanded the case to the Harrison County Circuit Court finding that the denial of the rule 60(b) motion was timely filed and that the circuit court abused its discretion in dismissing the appeal. The Nationwide Recovery Case is joined at the hip with this Complaint and is still pending in the Circuit Court of Harrison County Second Judicial District.

7

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District, filed a Notice of Appeal to the Judgment of Dismissal , Ordered and Adjudged on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of November 2007, by the honorable Circuit Court Judge Roger T. Clark, Stamped on November 16, 2007, by Gayle Parker, Circuit Court Clerk, Filed/Stamped November 16, 2007, 237/ 250-252. Mailed from the Circuit Court Clerk office by Certified Mailed on November 20, 2007 Certified Mail Number 7004 1350 0002 4887 0575, delivered to the Plaintiff's residence on the afternoon of Saturday, November 24, 2007. Appellant's Notice of Appeal was Filed/Stamped November 26, 2007, in the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Second Judicial District.

# (Refer to Appellant's Record Excerpts Tab 7).

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School, filed Plaintiff's Memorandum in Response to Judgment of Dismissal Filed/Stamped April 9, 2008. (Please refer to the Plaintiff's Memorandum in Response to Judgment of Dismissal as it brief describes the nature of the case, the course of the proceedings and its disposition in the circuit court) **Applicant's Record Excerpts Tab 6.** 

### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

I, Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District whose cause of action for termination is legally impermissible based upon the fact that the cause of action for termination is one of the two (2) exceptions to the general, employment at-will rule. I, Appellant Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, am a tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District with property interest (Tab 4, Record Excerpts of the Appellant with Exhibit "1" attached) and (Appeal Record, page 90, Exhibit "1") and as an employee who was discharged for reporting illegal acts of his employer (Biloxi Public School District) to the State Auditor's General Office and the State Attorney General's Office, and I am therefore not barred by the employment-at-will doctrine from bringing action in tort for damages against my employer. Buchanan v. Ameristar Casino Vicksburg, 852 So. 2d 25,26-27 (¶5) Miss. 2003); McArn v. Allied Bruce-Terminix Co., Inc., 626 So.2d 603, 607 (Miss. 1993) and also see, Heartsouth, PLLC v. Boyd, 865 So.2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss. 2003).

The Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se, being a tenured employee, with 9.75 Total Service Credit in the Public Employees' Retirement of Mississippi (Tab 4, Record Excerpts of the Appellant with Exhibit "1" attached) and (Appeal Record, page 90, Exhibit "1") as outlined and defined in Statues and Session Law 25-11-103, as established and described in Section 25-11-101, and filling a position of Teacher Assistant as provided for by Section 25-11-105(f), was unjustly and unlawfully deprived of his continued employment in the Biloxi Public School District whose cause of action for termination is legally impermissible based upon the exception to the general, employment-at-will rule.

9

There are Constitutional Issues involved on this case and Statutory Issues (the Defendants Lawyer Silas W. McCharen in his own words acknowledge that there is a "statutory Scheme" that is imposed by the Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law (MEEPL), Long title; See Statue §37-9-101, short title; legislative intent, School Employment Procedures Law "SEPL".

Therefore, I Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant Pro Se, tenured employee, with vested property interest in my continued employment in the Biloxi Public School District am questioning the unconstitutionality of the Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law (MEEPL), Long Title, See Statue §37-9-101, short title, legislative intent, School Employment Procedures Law "SEPL". This case involves fundamental issues of public importance requiring determination by the Supreme Court and conflicts with prior decisions rendered by the Mississippi Supreme Court.

Where the Federal Constitution guarantees a broader right than does a state statue, the statue must yield, Billiot v. State, 515, So. 2d 1234, 1236 (Miss. 1987).

The Appellate court's rule is to abstain from ruling on a constitutional issue, unless necessary to the disposition of a case. Freeman v. P.E.R.S. of Mississippi, 822 So 2d 724, 281 (¶24)(Miss.2002), Dean v. Public Emp. Retirement System, 797 So. 2d 830, 833 (¶14)(Miss. 2000), and Johnson v. Memorial Hospital of Gulfport, 732 So. 2d 864, 866 (¶9) (Miss. 1998). I, Joseph Davis, Jr., am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District whose cause of action for termination is legally impermissible based upon the cause of action for termination is one of the two exceptions to the general, employment-at-will doctrine/rule.

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., am a tenured employee in the Biloxi Public School District with vested property interest as an employee with continued employment, who was discharged for reporting illegal acts of his employer (Biloxi Public School District, Comptroller, Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent, and Administrator) to the State of Mississippi Auditor General's Office and the State of Mississippi Attorney General's Office and I am therefore, not barred by the employment at will doctrine from bringing action in tort for damages against my employer. Buchanan v. Ameristar Casino Vicksburg, 852 So. 2d 25, 26-27 (¶5)Miss. 2003), McArn v. Allied Bruce-Terminix Co., Inc 626 So. 2d 603, 607 (Miss. 1993), See, Heartsouth, PLLC v. Boyd, 865 So.2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss. 2003).

On the Original Appeal, the Honorable Judge Robert H. Walker, (then) Circuit Court Judge, Second Judicial District, Harrison County Mississippi erred in not ruling on or responding to the Rule 60 (a) and Rule 60(b) Motions that were properly submitted and filed by the Appellant, Pro Se. The lack of ruling on the two (2) Mississippi Rules of Court, Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure Rules (60 (a) and 60 (b) has caused the Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., to be unjustly tolled the time for filing the Original Appeal whereas the Rule 60 Motion, which historically has not been tolled the time. See Michael v. Michael, 650 So. 2d 469 (Miss. 1995) and the Appellant Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se is seeking relief from judgments tainted by capricious and arbitrary misrepresentation and statutory misconduct and violations by the Dependants. (Please refer to Appellants Record Excerpts, Tab 8 (Plaintiff's Motion Rule 60a, Mississippi Rules of Civil procedure) Also, refer to Appeal Record pages 305-308. The Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., pro se respectfully refer the court to the **Appellants Record Excerpts, Tab 4, Affidavit of Joseph Davis, Jr., Plaintiff., Pro Se In Response to The Biloxi Public School District Motion to Dismiss or in the Alternative, for Summary Judgment** Cause Number A2402-07-00036, Filed/Stamped ANovember 15, 2007, In the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District, Filed/Stamped on November 15, 2007, by Gayle Parker, Circuit Clerk.

#### ARGUMENT

The Appellant, Joseph Davis, Jr., tenured and vested employee being a member of the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi pursuant to and as outline and described in Sections 25-11-101, and Session Law 25-11-103, as established and described in Section 25-11-101, and filling a position of State Service as provided by Section 25-11-105(f) has been unjustly deprived of his vested property interest as an employee to his continued employment in the Biloxi Public School District.

Joseph Davis, Jr., tenured and vested employee (with property interest in the Biloxi Public School District as an employee under the Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law (MEEPL) §37-9-101, Long Title have been deprive of that by the Biloxi Public School District and the Biloxi Public Public School Board.

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, am a tenured and vested employee in the Biloxi am being deprived of my rights under the 42 U.S.C.A Section 1983, U. S. Constitutional Admendments 1<sup>st</sup>, 4<sup>th</sup>, 5<sup>th</sup>, 6<sup>th</sup>, 7<sup>th</sup>, 9<sup>th</sup>, 13<sup>th</sup>, and 14<sup>th</sup>, and The Civil Rights Law under Title VII of the Civil Rights act of 1991. Under §1983. CivilAction for Deprivation of Rights: Every person who, under color of anjy statue, ordance, regulation, custom, or usage, of any state or territory of the District of Columbia, subjects, or causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within the jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, suit in equity, other proper proceeding for redress, except that in any action brought against a judicial officer for an act of omission taken in such officer's judicial capacity, injunctive relief shall not be granted unless a declaratory decree was violated or declaratory relief was unavailable.

Due to the "statutory scheme" of the Mississippi Employee Education Procedures Law such relief has been unavailable to the Appellant Joseph Davis, Jr., employee who is tenured and vested with full property interest for continued employment in the Biloxi Public School District. I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District without an employment contract who have been terminated for reasons declared legally impermissible. Heartsouth, LLC v Boyd, 865 So.2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss.2003), Levens v. Campbell, 733 So. 2d 753, 760 (¶24) (Miss. 1999), and Shaw v. Burchfield, 481 So. 2d 247, 253-54 (Miss. 1985)

I, Joseph Davis, Jr., Appellant, pro se, am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School District whose cause of action for termination for termination is legally impermissible based upon the cause of action for termination is one of the two (2) exceptions to the general, employment-at-will rule. I, Joseph Davis, Jr., am a tenured employee of the Biloxi Public School with verifiable and genuine property interest for continued employment in the Biloxi Public School District who was discharged for reporting illegal acts and malfeasance of my employer to the State Auditor's General's Office and the State Attorney Generals Office. Therefore, I am not barred as an employee by the employment at will doctrine from bringing action in tort for damages against my employer. Buchanan v. Allied Bruce-Terminix Co., Inc., 626 So. 2d 603, 607 (Miss. 1993) Also, See Heartsouth, PLLC v. Boyd, 865 So. 2d 1095, 1108 (¶39) (Miss. 2003)

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