IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CASE NO. 2007-CP-02155

JOSEPH DAVIS, JR.

PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT

VS.

BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, et al.

DEFENDANTS/APPELLEES

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District Civil Action No. A2402-07-00036

BRIEF OF APPELLEES, BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BILOXI PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND REQUEST FOR DAMAGES AND COSTS PURSUANT TO Miss. R. App. P. 38

Oral Argument Not Requested

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

B. WAIVED ISSUES

It is well settled law that "an appellant is not entitled to raise new issues on appeal since to do so denies the trial court the opportunity to address the matter." *Albert v. Allied Glove Corp.*, 944 So. 2d 1, 7 (Miss. 2006) (*citing Crowe v. Smith*, 603 So. 2d 301 (Miss. 1992). "Precedent mandates that this Court not entertain arguments made for the first time on appeal as the case must be decided on the facts contained in the record and not on assertions in the briefs." *Chantey Music Publ., Inc. v. Malaco, Inc.*, 915 So. 2d 1052, 1060 (Miss. 2005).

At pp. 2 & 13 of his Brief, Appellant claims a violation of the Thirteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution which prohibits involuntary servitude. Such a claim is not only without merit⁷ but preposterous in the context of wrongful termination claim. Notwithstanding the absurdity of his 13th Amendment claim, Appellant did not assert a 13th Amendment claim in the *Davis II* Complaint.⁸ Since Appellant did not raise this issue at the trial court level, he is barred from raising this issue on appeal.

At pp. 3-4, 6, 9-11, & 14 of his Brief, Appellant, for the first time, asserts that his termination from the School District was the result of his reporting an illegal act of the School District⁹. Since Appellant did not raise this issue at the trial court level, he is barred from raising this issue on appeal.

C. IRRELEVANT ISSUES

Appellant's Brief cites at least 8 other "issues" on appeal. As previously stated, not one of Appellant's "issues" are relevant to this appeal. The only issues relevant herein are (1) whether the Trial Court erred in dismissing Appellant's Complaint and holding all of his claims barred by collateral estoppel, *res judicata* and/or the applicable statutes of limitation and (2) whether Appellees are entitled to damages and double costs under MISS. R. APP. P. 38.

⁷ The Biloxi Public School District has never forced any of its employees to work involuntarily and Appellees take offense at Davis' inclusion of a 13th Amendment violation in this appeal.

⁸ Other than making two references to the 13th Amendment at the November 15, 2007 hearing [Tr. 15], Davis made no argument before the Trial Court he was asserting a 13th Amendment claim or that the School District ever acted in violation of the same.

⁹ Appellant claims that he reported to the Mississippi State Auditor the "unlawful garnishment of [his] wages by . . . [the] Biloxi Public School District." The exceptions to the employment at will doctrine under *McArn* are limited in scope. *McArn v. Allied Bruce-Terminix Co., Inc.*, 626 So. 2d 603, 607 (Miss. 1993). "Illegal acts" under McArn must warrant the imposition of criminal penalties, as opposed to mere civil penalties. *Hammons v. Fleetwood Homes of Miss., Inc.*, 907 So. 2d 357, 360 (Miss. Ct. App. 2004). Appellees deny that the garnishment of Appellant's wages was "unlawful" much less was it an "illegal act" within the *McArn* employment at will exceptions..

Not once in his Brief does Appellant address the specific finding made in the Trial Court's Order that the merits of his termination had previously been litigated and affirmed on appeal in *Davis I*. Appellant's Brief further failed to address the Trial Court's additional finding that any claims not previously litigated or which should have been litigated in *Davis I* were barred by the applicable statute of limitations. Instead of addressing whether his claims were due to be dismissed on the grounds ruled upon by the Trial Court, Appellant has gone on a tangent, making statements and claims irrelevant, improper and inapplicable to his appeal. Appellees will briefly address these improper topics.

Contrary to Appellant's belief and repeated references that he was a "tenured" employee, Mississippi law clearly holds that a teachers' aides (like Davis) are NOT tenured employees entitled to continued employment, but are employees at will. *Davis*, 937 So. 2d at 461. Further, Appellees have found no law supporting Appellant's claim that the accrual of retirement benefits can change an employees status from at-will to tenured. [See Tr. 18 - Davis claims that because he is "retirement eligible" he has a "property interest" in his employment].

At p. 7 of his Brief, Appellant references one of his previous appeals to this Court, *Joseph Davis, Jr. v. Nationwide Recovery Service, Inc.*, 797 So.2d 929 (Miss. 2001). Appellant claims that his case against Nationwide is "joined at the hip" with the case *sub judice*. Appellees are not parties to the Nationwide collection action against Appellant and are not privy to any matters involved in that action. The Nationwide action has absolutely nothing to do with the case *sub judice* and Appellants reference to the same is improper in this appeal.

At pp. 5, 11-12, 15 of his Brief, Appellant essentially requests mandamus relief in regard to what he claims was a failure of Judge Walker, in *Davis I*, to rule on a Motion for Rule 60 relieif¹⁰. As stated above, request for mandamus relief in a separate lawsuit against a separate judge is improper in the current appeal and should be denied.

Just as the Mississippi Court of Appeals in *Boone v. Hercules, Inc.*, 872 So. 2d 730, 731 (Miss. App. Ct. 2004) disregarded the "numerous and varied issues appealed by Boone in his *pro se* brief, "this Court should likewise disregard the improper and irrelevant issues appealed by Davis in his Brief and consider only the issues raised by Appellees.

D. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DISMISSING DAVIS' CLAIMS AS A MATTER OF LAW

1. <u>Appellant's Claims in Davis II are Barred Under the Doctrine of Collateral</u> <u>Estoppel</u>

The primary allegations in the *Davis II* Complaint arise under 42 U.S.C § 1983¹¹. The doctrine of collateral estoppel is fully applicable to § 1983 actions. *Allen v. McCurry*, 449 U.S. 90, 104 (1980). "There is, in short, no reason to believe that Congress intended to provide a person claiming a federal right an unrestricted opportunity to relitigate an issue already decided in state court" *Id.*

The preclusive effect of a school employee's prior state court judgement is well established. Under Mississippi law, collateral estoppel applies when "(1) the plaintiff is seeking to relitigate a specific issue; (2) the issue was already litigated in a prior action; (3) the issue was actually determined in the prior action; and (4) the determination of the issue was essential to the judgment in the prior action." *Raju v. Rhodes*, 809 F. Supp. 1229, 1236 (S. D. Miss. 1992); *Garraway v.*

¹⁰ Other than stating that Judge Walker failed to rule on Davis' Rule 60 motion, Appellant fails to offer evidence of such a motion.

¹¹ Davis' rambling Complaint also alleged other violations of law but all such claims are predicated on the same facts that underlie his § 1983 allegations.

Retail Credit Company, 141 So. 2d 727, 730 (Miss. 1962) ("When a question of fact essential to a judgment is actually litigated and determined by a valid and final judgment, that determination is conclusive . . . in a subsequent suit on a different cause of action.").

In *Raju*, a professor of surgery at the University if Mississippi Medical Center sued his supervisor for violation of § 1983. The district court granted summary judgment on the grounds that plaintiff's claims were barred by litigation at the administrative level during the grievance procedure at the University. The Fifth Circuit affirmed. *Raju v. Rhodes*, 7 F.3d 1210 (5th Cir. 1993). The Fifth Circuit observed that "collateral estoppel conserves judicial resources, protects parties from multiple lawsuits, and promotes confidence in judgments and comity between state and federal courts." *Raju*, 7 F.3d at 1214. The court determined that the administrative process utilized by the University satisfied the minimum procedural due process requirements necessary for application of collateral estoppel. *Id*.

Gates v. Walker, 865 F. Supp. 1222, 1237 (S.D. Miss. 1994) is directly on point and dispositive on the issue of collateral estoppel. Gates, a former teacher with the Hattiesburg Municipal School District, brought a § 1983 action against the school district and various other school district employees, regarding the non-renewal of her employment contract. Gates claimed that the school district's non-renewal decision was based upon her alleged exercise of free speech, in violation of the First Amendment. *Id.* The district court, however, held that Gates' claims were barred by collateral estoppel and *res judicata* because the issues regarding her non-renewal were litigated and decided during her EEPL hearing which was ultimately affirmed by this Court in *Board of Trustees of the Hattiesburg Mun. Separate School District v. Gates*, 461 So. 2d 730 (Miss. 1984).

The district court in *Gates* specifically rejected Gates' contention that, because § 1983 encompassed broader remedies than those available on the administrative and appellate levels, collateral estoppel should not apply. Instead, the district court found that both the rights she alleged to have been infringed upon and the underlying factual circumstances therein were considered and ruled on by the chancery court and the Mississippi Supreme Court, regardless of the nature of the exact remedy sought in each proceeding. *Id.* at 1240. In concluding that Gates' claims were barred by collateral estoppel, the district court specifically stated:

The plaintiff in this case had her case reviewed by the Chancery Court on appeal from the decision of the school board and later by the Mississippi State Supreme Court. At these points, the plaintiff entered the judicial realm where issue preclusion principles are readily acknowledged. Plaintiff's core claim has been thoroughly litigated and decided against her. This court is not persuaded by any of plaintiff's arguments that another court should hear claims already previously litigated to finality in two state courts.

Id. at 1241.

Like the claims of Gates, Appellant's core claims herein have been thoroughly litigated and decided against him. And like the district court in Gates, this Court should refuse to entertain an appeal on claims which were litigated to finality in three Mississippi State Courts and the U.S. Supreme Court.

2. Davis II is Barred under the Doctrine of Res Judicata

The doctrine of *res judicata* likewise applies in the instant case since Appellant actually raised, litigated and lost before the Board, the Circuit Court, the Court of Appeals, the Mississippi Supreme Court, and the U.S. Supreme Court.

Four identities are required in order to establish *res judicata*: (1) identity of the subject matter; (2) identify of the cause of action; (3) identity of the parties; and (4) identity of the quality

of character of persons against whom the claim is made. *Riley v. Moreland*, 537 So. 2d 1348, 1354 (Miss. 1989). (quoting Dunnaway v. W. Harper & Assc., Inc. 422 So. 2d 749, 751 (Miss. 1982)).

The Gates opinion, supra, is also dispositive on res judicata claim preclusion. Applying the four identities established by this Court in *Riley*, supra, the district court also concluded that Gates' action as a whole was precluded under the doctrine of res judicata:

[T]he court finds that the doctrine of *res judicata* applies here. The essential claims raised in this federal action were raised in the Chancery Court and Mississippi Supreme Court. Plaintiff's argument that the matters involve variant remedies misses the mark. Remedies are predicated on findings of liability. Here, the Mississippi Supreme Court applied the applicable, relevant law to the facts and found that the plaintiff's claim lacked substance. Plaintiff presented her side of the facts. Defendants submitted theirs. The Mississippi Supreme Court examined all of this and made its finding of facts. This finding settled the First Amendment issue before the court. Therefore, all defendants are entitled to summary judgment because the instant suit is barred by principles of *res judicata*.

Gates, 865 F. Supp. at 1240.

All of the claims raised by Appellant in *Davis II* below were raised or should have been raised in the hearing before the board or in his later court proceedings in *Davis I*. All questions regarding Davis' termination and the manner in which he was terminated were resolved against him in *Davis I*. It is well-established Mississippi law that a final judgment on the merits of an action by a Court of proper jurisdiction precludes parties and their privies from re-litigating claims that were or could have been raised in that action. *Walton v. Bourgeois*, 512 So. 2d 698, 700 (Miss. 1987).

All of the issues asserted in *Davis II* below were essential to Judge Walker's judgment in *Davis I* and the decision of the Mississippi Court of Appeals affirming the same. Under

Mississippi law, a court review of whether a school board's decision was lawful is based on three criteria: (1) whether it was supported by substantial evidence, (2) whether it was arbitrary or capricious, or (3) whether the decision violated a statutory or constitutional right of the employee. MISS. CODE ANN. § 39-9-113. These factual and legal issues were fully litigated and decided against Appellant in *Davis I*.

3. Appellant's Claims Are Barred by the Applicable Statutes of Limitation

Appellant received notice of his termination on September 4, 2003. Appellant did not file his Complaint in *Davis II*, until three and a half years later on February 28, 2007. As noted above, the *Davis II* Complaint appeared to assert several theories of recovery, all of which arose out of his termination from the School District. Appellant specifically alleged violations of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and generally contended that he was deprived of his constitutional rights and that the District committed a number of state law torts against him. All of Appellant's claims, however, required dismissal as they were barred by the applicable statutes of limitation.

a. MISS. CODE ANN. § 15-1-49

The U.S. Supreme Court has held that the forum state's personal-injury statute of limitations should be applied to all 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claims. *Wilson v. Garcia*, 471 U.S. 261, 280 (1985). Therefore, Mississippi's general three-year statute of limitations, § 15-1-49, is applicable to the § 1983 claims herein. *Hubbard v. Miss. Conf. of the United Methodist Church*, 138 F. Supp. 2d 780, 782 (S.D. Miss. 2001) (*citing Thomas v. City of New Albany*, 901 F.2d 476, 476 (5th Cir. 1990)). MISS. CODE ANN. § 15-1-49 provides the following:

§ 15-1-49. Limitations applicable to actions not otherwise specifically provided for

(1) All actions for which no other period of limitation is prescribed shall be commenced within three (3) years next after the cause of such action accrued, and not after.

While state law determines the limitations period for § 1983 claims, federal law determines when a § 1983 cause of action accrues. *See Hitt v. Connell*, 301 F.3d 240, 246 (5th Cir. 2002); *Piotrowski v. City of Houston*, 237 F.3d 567, 580 (5th Cir.), *cert. denied*, 534 U.S. 820, 122 S. Ct. 53, 151 L. Ed. 2d 23 (2001); *Burns v. Harris County Bail Bond Bd.*, 139 F.3d 513, 518 (5th Cir. 1998); *Price v. Jefferson County*, 470 F. Supp. 2d 665, 681 (E.D. Tex. 2006). The U.S. Supreme Court, in *Chardon v. Fernandez*, 454 U.S. 6, 7-8 (1981), held that under § 1983, a plaintiff's cause of action accrues when he/she <u>receives notice of termination</u>, not when the employment actually terminates.

According to federal law, the statute of limitations for Appellant's § 1983 claim accrued/began to run on September 4, 2003 when he received notice of his termination. Applying Mississippi's three year limitation statute, the time within which to file his § 1983 claim expired on or about September 4, 2006, three years from the termination notice. Appellant, however, waited until February 28, 2007, almost six months after the expiration of the statue to file the instant § 1983 action. Since Appellant's § 1983 and constitutional claims were untimely, the Trial Court was correct when it dismissed the same as a matter of law.

b. MISS. CODE ANN. § 11-46-11

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